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33.

34.

35.

exposure including credit approvals, credit limits and guarantee requirements. An allowance for potential doubtful
receivables is maintained at a level which, in the judgment of management, is adequate to provide for potential
losses on delinquent receivables.

The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowance for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group's
management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.

d) Currencyrisk

Currency riskis the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to change in foreign exchange rates.
Except for operations of foreign subsidiaries, the Group did not undertake significant transactions in currencies
other than Saudi Riyals and US Dollars, during the year.

e) Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk uses commodity based derivative instruments to manage, some of
the risks arising from fluctuations in commodity prices. Where these derivatives have been designated as cash flow
hedges of underlying commodity price expenses, certain gains and losses attributable to these instruments are
deferred in shareholders’ equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of operations when the underlying
hedged transaction crystalizes or is no longer expected to occur.

f) Price risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in metal pricing. The Group enters into
derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to metal pricing.

FAIR VALUES

Except for the investments in associates, non-current retention receivable and available-for-sale — unquoted, the
fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain figures for 2013 have been reclassified to conform with the presentation of 2014.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On April 7, 2015, the Company and its main lenders, National Commercial Bank, Al Rajhi Bank and Bank Al-Jazira,
have signed a term sheet to restructure its debts. Salient details of the term sheet include:

- Moratorium on repayments to the three banks until March 31 2016.
- Repayment tenure for 8 years

- Total amount to be restructured SR 640 million. Right issues planned by December 2017.

The lenders have appointed legal counsel who will be preparing the legal documents, which we expect to be
completed by the end of the second quarter 2015.




29.

30.

31.

32,

FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Group has engaged
internationally renowned institutions of financial advisors, to restructure the financial requirements of the Group. A
comprehensive plan proposing a long term feasible financial structure for the Group, with additional working capital
financing, including capital increase, which will help stabilise, and strengthen the on-going operations, has been
presented to its lenders. The Group has reached agreement with certain lenders on its facilities, and continues to
work closely with the remaining lenders, in reaching agreement on its financial structure, and expects to finalise its
restructuring plan with all its lenders during 2015.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Non-cash transactions comprised the following:

2014 2013
Cumulative changes in fair values (43,210) (5,101)
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 951 (7,185)
Movement in non-controlling interest, net 5,103 (8,814)
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

2014 2013

Payments under operating leases recognized as an expense
y perating 9 P 2,328 2,868

during the year

Operating lease payments represent rentals paid by the Group for warehouses, offices, staff housing and
equipment and expire within one year.

RISK MANAGEMENT
a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the value of the financial
instruments. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly is mainly on the amounts due to banks. The Group
monitors the fluctuation, where applicable, in the interest rates and also entered into an interest rate Swap with a
commercial to hedge future adverse fluctuation in interest rates on its long term borrowing.

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. This risk is managed by
the Group's treasury department by monitoring the maturity profile of the Group and affiliates’ financial assets and
liabilities to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.

The Group’s financial liabilities primarily consist of include short term and long term loans, accounts payable,
finance lease obligations, other liabilities and due to related parties.

¢) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss.

Credit risk arises from the possibility that assets could be impaired because counter parties cannot meet their
obligations in transactions involving financial instruments. The Group has established procedures to manage credit
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28. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information pertains to the Group’s activities and operations as basis for preparing its own financial
information.

The Group currently operates in manufacturing/selling its products and turnkey power and telecommunication
projects.

Revenues and costs for the years ended December 31:

Revenues Sale of goods Contract revenue
2014 2013 2014 2013
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 1,000,516 1,476,084 128,756 366,972
Other Gulf Cooperation Coun- ) )
cil Countries 45,716 >7,389
Turkey 516,947 540,373 24,386 37,626
1,563,179 2,073,846 153,142 404,598
Costs Cost of sales Contract cost
2014 2013 2014 2013
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 995,933 1,405,288 123,240 378,682
Other Gulf Cooperation Coun-
. . 42,557 53,163 - -
cil Countries
Turkey 511,457 529,196 18,623 11,151
1,549,947 1,987,647 141,863 389,833

The Group'’s operations are conducted in Saudi Arabia, other Gulf Cooperation Council Countries (GCC) and
Turkey. Selected financial information for the year ended December 31, 2014 & 2013 and financial position as of
December 31,2014 & 2013, summarized by geographic area, is as follows:

Other GCC

2014 Saudi Arabia countries Turkey Total
Accounts receivable 455,265 5,642 62,948 523,855
Property, plant and equipment 391,354 118 370,863 762,335
Short term loans 646,006 - 197,210 843,216
Long term loans 302,769 - 62,121 364,890
Net loss (124,087) (708) (76,884) (201,679)
2013 Saudi Arabia Other G.CC Turkey Total

countries

Accounts receivable 593,571 16,238 81,254 691,063
Property, plant and equipment 440,089 315 385,133 825,537
Short term loans 836,022 - 248,986 1,085,008
Long term loans 321,752 - 59,540 381,292
Net loss (174,459) (306) (54,352) (229,117)




25. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2014 2013

Salaries and related benefits 48,965 45,895
Professional charges 14,819 12,394
Cable testing expenses 3,238 6,937
Depreciation 12,543 12,477
Bank charges 2,101 5,648
Repairs and maintenance 4,988 5,539
Traveling and transportation expenses 3,852 3,990
Rent and insurance 2,347 3,082
Utilities 2,437 2,901
Communications, public relations and social responsibility 245 7,020
Training and seminars 1,900 3,076
Advertisements 433 1,305
Printing and stationary 304 501
Others 5,463 3,673

103,635 114,438

26. LOSS PER SHARE

Loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 have been computed by dividing the net loss,
loss from main operations and loss from other operations for such years by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding at the end of the year.

27. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2014 2013
Outstanding forward metal contracts 411,840 746,242
Contingent liabilities in respect of performance and bid bonds 182,394 330,187
,(’T)tig;;rritz;i?annci gcr)]gt;cl;ciepdnfg:];apital expenditure commitments 9,774 4143
Contingent liabilities in respect of outstanding letters of credit - 2,068
Corporate guarantees issued 79,217 69,824
Letter of guarantees 114,015 96,750

In addition to providing guarantees in respect of bank facilities available to certain subsidiaries, the Company has
also provided undertakings to support such subsidiaries in meeting their liabilities as they fall due.
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Saudi Cable Company for Marketing Limited

The DZIT issued the final assessment for the years 1996 to 2004, and claimed Zakat differences of
Saudi Riyals 17 million. The Company filed its objection against the said Zakat differences and is

confident of favorable outcome. The Company filed its Zakat returns for the years 2005 to 2007.
The DZIT did not issue the final Zakat assessment for the said years till to date. Although, the

Company is essentially dormant but is in the process to file the Zakat returns for the years up to 2014.

23. CUMULATIVE CHANGES IN FAIR VALUES

Movement in cumulative changes in fair values is as follows as of December 31:

2014 2013
January 1 23,087 28,188
Net movement in realized/unrealized (losses)/gains on available-for- (902) 209
sale investments
Net movement in unrealized (losses)/gains relating to cash flow (42,308) (5510)
hedges
December 31 (20,123) 23,087

The balance of cumulative changes in fair values is comprised of the following as at December 31:

2014 2013
Net unrealized gains on revaluation of available-for-sale ) 902
investments
Net unrealized gains relating to cash flow hedges (20,123) 22,185
December 31 (20,123) 23,087

24, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
2014 2013
Salaries and related benefits 42,496 39,480
Travel and transportation 6,159 5,322
Repair and maintenance 2,500 2,063
Professional charges 2,135 2,631
Commissions 15,558 18,766
Freight and insurance 22,807 18,366
Export, loading and unloading 3,188 2,947
Depreciation 2,564 2,964
Rent 2,188 1,594
Utilities 561 861
Printing and stationery 199 312
Other 1,551 2,327
101,906 97,633




The movement in deferred tax asset is as follows:

2014 2013
January 1 957 8,134
Movement during the year 4,567 (7,177)
December 31 5,524 957

At December 31, 2014, deferred tax asset amounting to SR 5.5 million (2013: SR 0.96 million) relates to a foreign
subsidiary of the Group and the management believes that it is recoverable.

Status of assessments:
Saudi Cable Company

The Department of Zakat and Income Tax (DZIT) has assessed additional Zakat liability amounting to Saudi Riyals
88.8 million on the Company for the years 1993 to 2004 and 2008 to 2012. The Company objected against part of
the additional liabilities, which is still under an appeal with the DZIT and Board of grievances (BOG).

DZIT issued the assessment for the years 2005 to 2007 and claimed additional zakat and withholding tax liability
of SR 35.6 million. The Company objected against the said assessment, which was transferred to Preliminary
Objection Committee (POC) for the review and decision. PAC approved the DZIT point of view. Accordingly, the
Company filed an appeal against PAC’s decision with Higher Appeal Committee (HAC) which is under review by
the HAC. HAC might reject the appeal since the Company did not submit the bank guarantee of SR 33 million
along with the appeal. However, the HAC might accept the said appeal if the Company will manage to file the
bank guarantee before the hearing.

The Company booked a provision of Saudi Riyals 63 million against the above mentioned assessments by the DZIT.
The Company filed its Zakat returns for the year 2010 to 2013 and has obtained the restricted Zakat certificates.

Mass Centers for Distribution of Electrical Products Limited

The DZITissued the Zakat assessments for the years from 1998 to 2007, which showed Zakat liability of Saudi Riyals
1 million. The Company filed an appeal with the Higher Appeal Committee (HAC) against the said assessments

and is confident of favorable outcome.

The Company filed its Zakat returns for the years ended December 31, 2008 to 2010. The DZIT did not issue the
final Zakat assessments for the said years till to date. Although, the Company is essentially dormant but is in the

process to file the Zakat returns for the years up to 2014.
Mass Projects for Power & Telecommunications Limited

The Company filed its Zakat returns for the years from 1999 to 2013, The DZIT issue its final Zakat Assessments for
the years 1999 to 2004 and claimed additional Zakat differences of Saudi Riyals 3 million. The Company filed an
objection against the DZIT assessment, which is still under review by DZIT. Final assessments for the years 2005
to 2013 were not issued by the DZIT till to date.
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At December 31, 2014, the Swap Contract has a negative fair value of SR 5.12 million (2013: negative fair

value of SR 16.84 million), based on the valuation determined by a model and confirmed by the banker. Such

negative fair value is included in accruals and other payable - current liabilities in the consolidated balance

sheet and changes in fair value of derivative is recognized in the consolidated statement of operations,

being ineffective interest rate swap. The maturity of Swap Contract is April 2015.

19. END-OF-SERVICE INDEMNITIES

2014 2013
January 1 58,658 60,648
Provision for the year 16,663 6,762
Paid during the year (7,384) (8,752)
December 31 67,937 58,658

20. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital consists of 76,000,000 shares of Saudi Riyals 10 each as at December 31,2014 and 2013.

21. STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with Regulations for Companies in Saudi Arabia and the by-laws of the Company, after recovering

the accumulated losses, the Company establishes a statutory reserve by appropriation of 10% of net income until

the reserve equals 50% of the share capital. This reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

22. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

The principal elements of the zakat base are as follows:

2014 2013
Non-current assets 1,164,934 1,026,669
Non-current liabilities 156,614 219,078
Opening shareholders’ equity 511,940 1,002,945
Net loss before zakat and income tax and non-controlling interest 108,389 157,912

Some of these amounts have been adjusted in arriving at the zakat charge for the year.

Zakat computation for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was based on the financial statements of the
parent Company and its subsidiaries.

Foreign subsidiaries are subject to income tax in accordance with the tax laws of the countries of their incorporation.
Provisions for income tax of foreign subsidiaries are charged to the consolidated statement of operations.

The movement in zakat and income tax provision is as follows:

2014 2013
January 1 50,276 42,287
Provision during the year 15,000 22,162
Payment during the year (536) (14,173)
December 31 64,740 50,276




Finance leases relate to manufacturing equipment leases with a term of 5 years or less. The Group has options to
purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the lease agreement. The Group's obligations under
finance leases are secured by the lessors'title to the leased assets

17. LONG TERM LOANS

2014 2013
Other commercial loans 239,330 237,884
Loan from SIDF 125,560 143,408
Long term loans 364,890 381,292
Less : Current portion of long term loans (204,609) (168,450)
Non-current portion of long term loans 160,281 212,842

All commercial loans are at prevailing commercial terms. The loans are repayable in approximately equal semi-
annual installments spread over various periods up to the year 2015 commencing April 15, 2011. These are
secured by promissory notes. The SIDF loan is secured by a mortgage over property, plant and equipment of the
Company and is repayable in semi-annual installments up to the year 2015 commencing from March 15, 2010. =

The non-current portion of loan is allocated as follows:

2014 2013

2015 - 77,382
2016 75,395 56,250
2017 43,250 43,250
2018 41,636 35,960
160,281 212,842

The Group has breached covenants related to the bank borrowings and is in process of restructuring its
borrowings with the banks as mentioned in note 29.

18. OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

2014 2013
Previous shareholders of Elimsan Salt (18.1) - 36,109
Derivative financial instrument (18.2) - 16,836
December 31 - 52,945

18.1 During the year, the amount SR 36,109 thousand was repaid to previous shareholders of Elimsan Salt.

18.2 The Group entered into an interest rate swap (the “Swap Contract”), with a commercial bank to hedge
future adverse fluctuation in interest rates on its long term borrowings. The Group designated the Swap
Contracts, at its outset, as a cash flow hedge.

The notional amount of the Swap Contract at December 31, 2014 is US Dollars 60 million (2013: US Dollars
130 million). The Swap Contract is intended to effectively convert the interest rate cash flow on the long
term loans from a floating rate based on LIBOR to a fixed rate, during the entire tenor of the loan agreements.
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The acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase consideration in
excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired, amounted to SR 86,558 thousand, and has been accounted for as
goodwill in these consolidated financial statements. During 2014, due to increase in capital of Elimsan Salt Cihazlari,
the ownership percentage increased to 94%.

As of 31 December 2014, the Group performed an impairment analysis on cash generating unit related with goodwiill
and as a result, SR 12.34 million (2013: SR Nil) was recorded.
14. SHORT TERM LOANS

Short term loans obtained from various local and foreign banks are secured by assignment of receivables and are
repayable within one year. These loans carry commission charges at various rates at normal commercial terms.

The Company’s foreign subsidiaries have obtained short term loans from various foreign banks which are secured
by the Company’s guarantee. These loans carry commission charges at various rates on normal commercial terms.
All short term loans are repayable within one year and are shown as current liability.

The Group has breached covenants related to the bank borrowings andis in process of restructuring its borrowings
with the banks as mentioned in note 29.

15. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2014 2013
Accounts payable* 351,186 465,137
(Accrued expenses and other liabilities (note 15.2 & 18.2 284,407 193,596
635,593 658,733

15.1 This includes retention payable of SR 30.6 million (2013: SR 30.03 million).

15.2 In order to hedge its exposure to copper and lead prices, the Group enters into future contracts. Unrealized
gains and losses arising on copper and lead future contracts designated as hedges of identified exposures
are deferred and matched against gains and losses arising on the specified transactions.

At 31 December 2014, the fair value of the Group’s metal price hedging is based on quoted market prices
for equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date, comprising SR 21.11 million liabilities. (2013: SR 24.53

million assets). The fair value of metal price hedging that is designated and effective as cash flow hedges
has been deferred in equity.

16. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

2014 2013
Minimum lease payments 44,140 58,527
Less: financial charges not yet due (5,325) (8,258)
38,815 50,269
Current maturity shown under current liabilities 9,919 9,573
28,896 40,696

2014 2013
Obligation under finance lease 38,815 50,269
Within one year 9,919 9,573
Within two to five years 28,896 40,696




11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

January 1 Additions Disposal December 31
Cost:
Lands & Buildings 47,734 - (611) 47,123
Depreciation:
Buildings 15,439 965 - 16,404
Total Depreciation 15,439 965 16,404
Net Book Value at January 1 32,295
Net Book Value at December 31 30,719

The Group has pledged its investment properties to secure general banking facilities.

12. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

January 1 Additions December 31
Cost:
Capitalized development cost 101,343 1,688 103,031
Rights 16,478 375 16,853
Other 24,493 62 24,555
Total Cost 142,314 2,125 144,439
Amortization:
Capitalized development cost 37,827 13,032 50,859
Rights 13,296 311 13,607
Other 12,534 3,142 15,676
Total Amortization 63,657 16,485 80,142
Net Book Value at January 1 78,657
Net Book Value at December 31 64,297

As of 31 December 2014, the management performed an impairment analysis on other intangible assets. Management
believes that there is noimpairment of other intangible assets which is based on the assumption of successful restructuring

of loans as disclosed in note 29.
13. GOODWILL

On July 31, 2009, the Group acquired 79 % of the issued share capital of Elimsan Salt Cihazlari ve Elektrornekanik San ve
Tic. AS (group of companies) for consideration of Saudi Riyals 128,336 thousand.

The Group recognized the following fair value adjustments:

Share in acquired net assets before acquisition (17,748)

Fair value adjustments to:

Property, plant and equipment 60,210
Inventories 3,917
Deferred tax liabilities (4,601)
59,526
Fair value of net assets acquired 41,778
Goodwill 86,558
Total consideration fulfilled by cash 128,336
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c) Available-for-sale investments - unquoted:

2014 2013
January 1 589 2,529
Addition during the year 35 -
Provision during the year - (1,940)
December 31 624 589

Available-for-sale investments for unquoted comprise unquoted equity securities carried at cost due to the
unpredictable nature of future cash flows and lack of suitable alternate methods for determining a reliable fair
value.

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

January 1 Additions Disposals Transfers December 31
Cost:
Lands 180,154 - (1,221) - 178,933
Buildings 438,094 210 (1,263) (1,534) 435,507
Plant and machineries 1,345,783 2,801 (13,223) 6,921 1,342,282
Furniture and fixtures 145,113 1,366 (447) 307 146,339
Capital work-in-progress (¥) 20,758 13,006 (8) (5,694) 28,062
Total Cost 2,129,902 17,383 (16,162) - 2,131,123
Depreciation:
Buildings 230,430 12,288 (1,012) - 241,706
Plant and machineries 976,292 51,852 (12,507) - 1,015,637
Furniture and fixtures 97,643 14,236 (434) - 111,445
Total Depreciation 1,304,365 78,376 (13,953) - 1,368,788
Net Book Value at January 1 825,537

Net Book Value at December 31 762,335

(*) Capital work-in-progress represents buildings, plant and machineries, development cost, furniture and

fixtures under construction.

As of 31 December 2014, the management performed an impairment analysis on property, plant and equipment.
Management believes that there is no impairment of property, plant and equipment which is based on the

assumption of successful restructuring of loans as disclosed in note 29.




9.

a)

b)

The movement in provision for slow moving inventories is as follows:

2014 2013
January 1 58,333 53,710
Allowance during the year 35,123 12,331
Utilized during the year (10,068) (7,708)
December 31 83,388 58,333
INVESTMENTS
2014 2013
Investment in associates (note a) 469,583 437,902
Available-for-sale investments - quoted (note b) - 1,733
Available-for-sale investments - unquoted (note ¢) 624 589
470,207 440,224
Movement in investments is as follows:
Associates:
2014 2013
January 1 437,902 329,042
Share of profit from associates 114,540 131,858
Share of net movement of unrealized gain/(loss) relating to cash
flow hedges 3,357 (4.618)
Share of exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 951 (7,185)
Dividends (87,167) (11,195)
December 31 469,583 437,902
Available -for-sale investments - quoted:
2014 2013
January 1 1,733 1,700
Provision during the year - (376)
Disposal of investment (831) -
Net movement in realized/unrealized (loss)/gain during the year (902) 409
December 31 - 1,733
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UNBILLED REVENUE / BILLINGS IN EXCESS OF CONTRACT REVENUE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Unbilled revenue represents revenue earned but not yet billed up to the year end. These amounts will be billed in

the subsequent periods. It also includes an amount of SR 50.4 million (2013: SR 107.7 million) which is outstanding

for more than one year. The management believes that this amount will be invoiced and collected during 2015.

2014 2013

Value of work completed 2,074,823 1,958,874

Less: Progress billings (2,042,237) (1,762,345)

32,586 196,529

Unbilled revenue 78,570 209,480

Billing in excess of contract revenue (45,984) (12,951)

32,586 196,529

Unbilled revenue 78,570 209,480

Less: Allowance for unbilled revenue (1,489) (1,489)

Net unbilled revenue 77,081 207,991
The movement in allowance for unbilled revenue is as follows:

2014 2013

January 1 1,489 4,476

Utilized during the year - (2,987)

December 31 1,489 1,489

INVENTORIES
2014 2013

Finished goods 210,550 247,215

Work in process 74,424 107,479

Raw materials 188,826 187,609

Spare parts and wooden reels 28,466 25,994

Goods in transit - 10,506

502,266 578,803

Less: Allowance for slow moving inventories (83,388) (58,333)

418,878 520,470




6.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has transacted during the year under terms set and agreed with the following related parties:

Name Relationship
Midal Cables W.L.L Associate
Xenel Industries Limited Affiliate
Xeca International Information Technology Affiliate
Hidada Limited Affiliate
Alujain Corporation Affiliate
Chem Global Limited Affiliate
The significant transactions and the related amounts are as follows:
2014 2013
Purchases 6,865 61,755
Dividend income 87,167 11,195
Other advances 2,866 8,003
Outsourcing services paid 6,742 7,501
Expenses charged by the Group - 16
Directors’ remuneration 72 640
Due from a related party as of December 31 is comprised of the following:
2014 2013
Alujain Corporation - 84
- 84
Due to related parties as of December 31 is comprised of the following:
2014 2013
Xenel Industries Limited 36,219 33,353
Midal Cables W.L.L 2,687 20,175
Chem Global Limited 664 664
Xeca International Information Technology 549 550
Hidada Limited 1,451 294
41,570 55,036




3. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Year Ended December 31.2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, demand deposits and highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less and comprise of the following:

2014 2013
Cash and bank balances 61,951 122,029
4, ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
2014 2013
Accounts receivable* 734,133 897,371
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (210,278) (206,308)
523,855 691,063
The movement in allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:
2014 2013
January 1 206,308 134,869
Provision for the year 3,970 71,439
December 31 210,278 206,308
* This includes retentions receivable of SR 109.99 million (2013: SR 96.13 million).
5. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2014 2013

Prepaid expenses 15,596 16,059

Advances to suppliers 26,886 35,730

Other deposits (5.1) 43,362 39,057

Other receivable (15.2) 24,933 71,725

110,777 162,571

5.1 Other deposits include an amount of SR 8.8 million (2013: SR 13.5 million) paid to the Custom Authorities on
account of custom duty levied on the Company for certain imports of copper rods, the main raw material for
cable production and it is considered duty exempt for all cable producers. Based on the exemption available in
the Customs Act, the Company is pursuing this matter with the relevant authorities for the refund of such deposit,

the Company is confident of the full recovery of the amount.




Percentage-of-completion

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its construction contract revenue. Use
of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Group to estimate the proportion of work performed
to date as a proportion of the total work to be performed and management considers that the survey of
work performed is the most appropriate measure of percentage-of-completion in arriving at the profit to be
recognized for the period.

The Group's revenue is also subject to re-measurement by customers. In order to determine the overall contract
revenue, the Group’s management relies on internally generated estimates prepared by their quantity surveyors
taking into account material used, scope of work and labour hours.

The measurement of revenue is affected by a variety of uncertainties that depend on the outcome of future
events. The estimated contract value may need to be revised as events occur and uncertainties are resolved.
In making this judgment, consideration was given as to whether the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow
to the Group. Based on these judgments, margins may vary year on year as amounts which are deferred due
to uncertainty in one financial period are recognized in the subsequent financial period, when management
considers that the outcome of the related contract could be reliably estimated.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are discussed below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its estimated useful life, which is based on expected usage of
the asset and expected physical wear and tear which depends on operational factors. The management has not
generally considered any residual value as it is deemed immaterial.

Allowance for doubtful debts

Allowance for doubtful debts is determined based upon a combination of factors to ensure that the contract
receivables are not overstated due to uncollectability. The allowance for doubtful debts for all customers is
based on a variety of factors, including the overall quality and aging of the receivables and continuing credit
evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions.

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Adjustments to reduce the cost of inventory
to its realizable value, if required are made at the product level for estimated excess, obsolescence or impaired
balances. Factors influencing these adjustments include changes in demand, physical deterioration and quality
issues.

Non-current retentions

Non-current retentions receivable and payable are measured at their fair value at each period end by discounting
at the Group's effective borrowing rate which management considers to be the appropriate discount rates for
these assets and liabilities. The expected recovery date of retentions receivable is based on management’s
estimate, in turn based on past experience and likely timeframe of recovery, rather than contractual due dates.
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are charged to the consolidated statement of operations over the term of the relevant lease in order to produce
a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting year.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to consolidated statement of operations on a straight line
basis over the term of the operating lease.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described above, management has made
the following judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations), which are dealt with below:

Impairment of non-current assets, excluding goodwill

Non-current assets, excluding goodwill are reviewed to look for any indication that the asset may be impaired. If
impairment is indicated, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Recoverable amount is higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating unit have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates.

Development costs

Development costs are charged to the consolidated statement of operations in the period in which they are
incurred, except where a clearly-defined project is undertaken and it is reasonably anticipated that development
costs will be recovered through future commercial activity. Such development costs, if any deferred and
amortized on a straight line basis over the life of the project from the date of commencement of commercial
operations.

Contract variations

Contract variations are recognized as revenue to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue
which can be reliably measured. This requires the exercise of judgment by management based on prior
experience, application of contract terms and relationships with the contract owners and stage of negotiations
reached.

Contract claims

A claim is an amount that the contractor seeks to collect from the customer or another party as reimbursements
for costs not included in the contract price. A claim may arise from, for example, customer caused delays,
prolongation cost, cost of acceleration of project, program errors in specifications or design, and disputed
variations in contract work. The measurement of the amounts of revenue arising from claims is subject to a high
level of uncertainty and often depends on the outcome of negotiations. Therefore, claims are only included in
contract revenue when the amount has been accepted by the customer and can be measured reliably.




Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as hedges of
forecast transactions are recognized directly in consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity. If the cash flow
hedge results in the recognition of an asset or a liability, then at the time the asset or liability is recognized, the
associated gains or losses on the derivative that had been recognized in consolidated statement of shareholders’
equity are included in the initial measurement of the asset or liability.

Changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized
in the consolidated statement of operations as they arise. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time,
for forecast transactions, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in equity is retained
in equity until the forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity is transferred to the consolidated statement of operations for the
year.

ii) The Group usesinterest rate swaps to manage its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its bank borrowings.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gains or losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of operations immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the consolidated statement of
operations depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Interest rate swaps, if material, are presented as a non-current asset in case of favorable contracts or a non-
current liability in case of unfavorable contracts if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12
months and it is not expected to be realized or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as
current assets or current liabilities.

Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date
are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at that date. Gains and losses from settlement and translation of
foreign currency transactions are included in the consolidated statement of operations.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group'’s overseas subsidiaries are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the consolidated balance sheet date. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's
translation reserve. Such translation difference are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations in
the period in which the overseas subsidiary is disposed.

Leasing

Leases are classified as capital leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under capital leases are recognized as assets of the Group at the lower of the present value of the
minimum lease payments or the fair market value of the assets at the inception of the lease.

Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and the lower of the
present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair market value of the assets at the inception of the lease,
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individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on an individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group'’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit year as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through an allowance account. When a financial asset is
not considered recoverable, it is written-off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written-off are credited to the consolidated statement of operations. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations.

Zakat and income tax

The Company and its Saudi Arabian subsidiaries are subject to the regulations of the Directorate of Zakat and
Income Tax (DZIT) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Zakat is provided on an accrual basis. The Zakat charge is
computed on the Zakat base. Any differences in the estimate is recorded when the final assessment is approved
at which time the accrual is cleared.

Foreign subsidiaries are subject to income taxes in their respective countries of domicile. Such income taxes are
charged to consolidated statement of operations.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements of the subsidiary and the corresponding tax bases which are used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

End-of-service indemnities

End-of-service indemnities, required by Saudi Arabian Labor Law, are provided in the consolidated financial
statements based on the employees’ length of service.

Derivative financial instruments

i) The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as metal futures that are cash settled to hedge the
exposure against metal price changes risk on sale of goods.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are recognized as a financial asset if it has a positive fair value and as a financial liability if has a
negative fair value.

The gain or loss on re-measurement to fair value is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of
operations. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition of any resulting gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

The derivative instruments used by the Group are designated as cash flow hedges of the risks being hedged.
The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies which provide written principles on the use
of financial derivatives consistent with the Group's risk management strategy.




Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the non-controlling interest’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
acquisition. Losses applicable to the non-controlling interest in excess of its share in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interest has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Impairment of non-current assets, excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses whether there are any indications, whether internal or external,
of impairment in the value of non-current assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset
is the higher of its value in use and fair value less cost to sell.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually or whenever there is an indication
that asset may be impaired.

A non-current asset is considered impaired if its carrying amount is higher than its recoverable amount. To
determine impairment, the Group compares the non-current asset’s carrying amount with the non-discounted
estimated cash flow from the asset’s use. If the carrying amount exceeds the non-discounted cash flow from
the asset, the Group estimates the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the asset. The excess
of the carrying amount over the present value of the estimated future cash flows from the assets is considered
an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of operations. Where an
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in the prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of operations. Impairment
loss relating to intangible assets with indefinite lives is not reversed in a subsequent period. A reversal of an
impairment loss to intangible assets with identified useful life is recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of operations.

Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets comprise of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, non-current retention receivable,
other receivables and due from related parties. These financial assets are initially measured as fair value and
thereafter at their cost value as reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
Significant financial liabilities include short term and long term loans, accounts payable, finance lease obligations,
other liabilities and due to related parties and are stated at their fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

Certain categories of financial assets, such as accounts receivable, that are assessed not to be impaired
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the investment over the Group’s share in the fair value of the identifiable
net assets of the investee company at the date of acquisition and is stated at cost less any impairment, if any.
Goodwill is not amortized but is reviewed for impairment at least annually.

Impairment of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the cash generating units expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
amount is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss
recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Research and development costs

Research costs are charged to the consolidated statement of operations in the period in which they are incurred.

Development costs are charged to the consolidated statement of operations in the period in which they are
incurred, except where a clearly-defined project is undertaken and it is reasonably anticipated that development
costs will be recovered through future commercial activity. Such development costs, if any deferred and
amortized on a straight line basis over the life of the project from the date of commencement of commercial
operations.

Provision for obligations

A provision is recognized in the consolidated balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognized when the Group has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring
which has been notified to affected parties.

Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is engaged in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses and about which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing
performance. For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products
and services and has following three reportable operating segments under manufacturing/ sale of products and
turnkey power and telecommunication products:

- Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

- Other Gulf Cooperation Council Countries

- Turkey

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently
from profit or loss in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.




are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of all investments and financial instruments is reduced to recognize other than temporary
diminution in value.

Investment in associates

Investments in companies which are at least 20% owned and in which the Group exercises significant influence are
recorded using the equity method, under which the investment is stated initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the net assets of the investee. These are referred to as associates.
The Group's share in the associates’ net income for the year is included in the consolidated statement of operations.
The Group's share of the amount recognized directly in the investees’ equity is included in the consolidated
statement of equity. Dividends are recorded when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditure on maintenance and
repairs is expensed, while expenditure for betterment is capitalized. Depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful lives of the applicable assets using the straight line method.

The estimated rates of depreciation of the principal classes of assets are as follows:

Number of years
Buildings 15-50
Plant and machineries 4-20
Furniture and fixtures 4-10

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress represents all costs relating directly and indirectly to the projects in progress and is
capitalized as property and equipment when the project is completed.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property
under construction for such purposes). Land is recorded at cost. Investment properties, excluding lands, are
stated at cost, including transaction cost less accumulated depreciation and reviewed every balance sheet date
for any decline in the value of the investment.

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets) is including in the consolidated statement of operations in the
period in which the property is derecognized.

Deferred cost
Deferred cost represents key money paid for acquiring a land and is amortized over five years.
Non-current retentions receivable

Non-current retentions receivable are measured at their fair value at each period end by discounting them at the
Group's effective borrowing rate, which management considers to be the appropriate discount rates for these
assets.
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Consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries (thereafter referred
to as “the Group”).The consolidated financial statements have been consolidated on line by line basis adding
together items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. All significant inter-company balances and
transactions among the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated in the consolidation.

Sales
Sales are recognized upon delivery of goods and are stated net of discounts.
Contract revenue

Revenue on long-term contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is recognized under the percentage
of completion method by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity. The stage of completion is
measured by calculating the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of a contract.
The percentage of completion is then applied to the total contract value to determine the revenue earned to date.
When the current estimate of total contract costs and revenues indicate a loss, provision is made for the entire
loss on the contract irrespective of the amount of work done. Revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed to
customers are classified under current assets as unbilled revenue. Amounts billed to customers in excess of revenue
recognized are classified under current liabilities as billings in excess of revenue.

Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses principally comprise of costs incurred in the distribution and sale of the Company’s
products. All other expenses are classified as general and administrative expenses.

General and administrative expenses include direct and indirect costs not specifically part of cost of sales or contract
cost as required under accounting principles generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Allocations between general and administrative expenses, cost of sales and contract cost, when required, are made
on a consistent basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost of finished goods includes cost of materials,
labor and an appropriate proportion of direct overheads. Inventories are valued on a weighted average cost basis.
An allowance is made wherever necessary for obsolete, slowing-moving and defective stock.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for the inventories less costs necessary to make the sale.
Investments available-for-sale

Investments in financial instruments are classified according to the Group's intent with respect to those securities.
Financial instruments available-for-sale (“AFS”) are stated at fair value, and unrealized gains and losses thereon are
included in consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity. Where the fair value is not readily determinable, such
financial instruments are stated at cost. The carrying amount of investment in financial instruments is reduced to
recognize other than temporary diminution in value.

Income from the investments in financial instruments is recognized when dividends are declared.
Investment in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries, which are more than 50% owned and in which the Company exercises control, are
consolidated based on the financial statements of the respective subsidiaries.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactions between Group companies




Country of % of ownership

Name of entity Principal activities incorporation 2014 2013
Domestic
Saudi Cable Company for Marketing Purchase and sale of electrical
Limited cables and related products Saudi Arabia 100% 100%
Mass Projects for Power and Turnkey power and
Telecommunications Limited telecommunication projects Saudi Arabia 100% 100%
Mass Centers for Distribution of Electrical and telecommunication
Electrical Products Limited distribution services Saudi Arabia 100% 100%

International

Mass Kablo Yatirim Ve Ticaret Sirketi (Previously Mass Holding Turkey

Anonim Anonim Sirketi) Company 100% 100%

Demirer Kablo Tesisleri Sanayi Ve Manufacture, supply

Ticaret Anonim Sirketi and trading of electrical cables Turkey 100% 100%

Mass International Trading Company

Limited (dormant) International trade Ireland 100% 100%
United Arab

Saudi Cable Company (U.A.E) L.L.C. Sale of cables and related products Emirates 100% 100%

Elimsan Salt Cihazlari ye Manufacture and distribution of

Elektromekanik San ve Tic. A.S. electronic gears and goods Turkey 94% 79%

Elimsan Metalurji ve Makine San. Ve Manufacture and distribution of

Tic. AS. electronic gears and goods Turkey 94% 79%

a) The Group has the following investments in associates, which are accounted for on an equity basis as at

December31:
Country of % of ownership
Name of entity Principal field of activities incorporation 2014 2013
Midal Cables W.L.L. Conductors & related products Bahrain 50% 50%
XECA International Information Implementation of information
Technology systems and network services Saudi Arabia 25% 25%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The following is a summary of significant
accounting policies applied by the Group.
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property, plant and equipment (17,383) (37,898)
Addition to investments (35) -
Dividends received from an associate 87,167 11,195
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 8,346 19,265
Proceeds from sale of investment 1,706 -
Additions to other intangible assets (2,125) (35,277)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 77,676 (42,715)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank overdraft - (1,518)
Short term loans (241,792) (152,080)
Long term loans (16,402) (266,219)
Obligation under finance lease (11,454) 30,622
Other long term liabilities (41,230) (3,349)
Net cash used in financing activities (310,878) (392,544)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (60,078) (10,350)
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 122,029 132,379
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DECEMBER 31 61,951 122,029

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31.2014
(Expressed in thousand Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

1. ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITIES

Saudi Cable Company is a Saudi joint stock company registered in Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration
No. 4030009931 dated 27 Rabi'll, 1396H (April 27, 1976).

The objectives of the Group are the manufacture and supply of electrical and telecommunication
cables, copper rod, PVC compounds, wooden reels and related products. The Group through its
subsidiaries is also engaged in the manufacture, contracting, trading, distribution and supply of
cables, electronic products, information technology products and related accessories.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the following
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”):

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




Consolidated Statements Of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31.2014
(Expressed in thousand Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

2014 2013
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss before zakat and income tax and non-controlling interest (190,301) (209,015)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 78,376 79,598
Depreciation for investment properties 965 983
Impairment of goodwill 12,342 -
Allowance for doubtful debts 3,970 71,439
Allowance for slow moving inventories 35,123 12,331
Amortization of other intangible assets 16,485 13,781
Loss on sale of Investment property 611 -
(Gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (6,137) (19)
Gain on sale of investment (875) -
Allowance against investments - 2,316
Share of profit from associates (114,540) (131,858)
Employees' termination benefits, net 9,279 (1,990)
Finance charges 112,039 153,225
Fair value of derivative financial instruments (11,715) (15,660)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 163,238 170,214
Non-current portion of retentions 614 (5,673)
Due from related parties 84 2,447
Prepayments and other receivables 6,129 87,251
Unbilled revenue 130,910 13,628
Inventories 66,469 254,163
Accounts payable and other liabilities (51,278) 74,579
Billing in excess of contract revenue 33,033 5,236
Due to related parties (13,466) 21,512
Advances from customers (25,795) (30,288)
Cash from operations 255,560 568,200
Zakat and income tax paid (3,638) (14,173)
Finance charges paid (78,798) (129,118)
Net cash from operating activities 173,124 424,909

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
Year Ended December 31.2014

(Expressed in thousand Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Note 2014 2013
Share capital 20 760,000 760,000
Statutory reserve 21 63,432 63,432
Cumulative changes in fair values
January 1 23,087 28,188
Fair value adjustments (43,210) (5,101)
December 31 23 (20,123) 23,087
Foreign currency translation reserve
January 1 (7,185) -
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 9 951 (7,185)
December 31 (6,234) (7,185)
(Accumulated losses)/retained earnings
January 1 (165,653) 63,464
Net loss for the year (201,679) (229,117)
December 31 (367,332) (165,653)
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent 429,743 673,681
Non-controlling interest
January 1 4,469 13,283
Net movement during the year 5,103 423
Net loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interest (2,157) (9,237)
December 31 7,415 4,469
Total equity 437,158 678,150

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31.2014

(Expressed in thousand Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Note 2014 2013

Sales 1,563,179 2,073,846
Contract revenue 153,142 404,598
Total revenue 1,716,321 2,478,444
Cost of sales (1,549,947) (1,987,647)
Contract cost (141,863) (389,833)
(1,691,810) (2,377,480)

Gross profit 24,511 100,964
Selling and distribution expenses 24 (101,906) (97,633)
General and administrative expenses 25 (103,635) (114,438)
Allowance for doubtful debts 4 (3,970) (71,439)
Amortization of other intangible assets 12 (16,485) (13,781)
Loss from main operations (201,485) (196,327)
Fair value of derivative financial instruments 18 11,715 15,660
Impairment of goodwill 13 (12,342) -
Foreign currency measurement loss (473) (6,243)
Financial charges (112,039) (153,225)
Share of profit from associates 114,540 131,858
Other income/(loss), net 9,783 (738)
Loss before zakat and income tax and non-controlling interest (190,301) (209,015)
Zakat and income tax 22 (13,535) (29,339)
Net loss before non-controlling interest (203,836) (238,354)
Non-controlling interest 2,157 9,237
Net loss for the year (201,679) (229,117)
Loss per share from net loss (SR) 26 (2.65) (3.01)
Loss per share from main operations (SR) 26 (2.65) (2.58)
Loss per share from other operations (SR) 26 (0.15) (0.17)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)
As of December 31.2014

Consolidated Financial Statements and

Auditors’ Report Year Ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in thousand Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Note 2014 2013
Equity
Share capital 20 760,000 760,000
Statutory reserve 21 63,432 63,432
Cumulative changes in fair values 23 (20,123) 23,087
Foreign currency translation reserve 9 (6,234) (7,185)
Accumulated losses (367,332) (165,653)
Equity attributable to the shareholders of the parent 429,743 673,681
Non-controlling interest 7,415 4,469
Total Equity 437,158 678,150
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,655,792 3,225,002

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements




Consolidated Balance Sheet

As of December 31.2014
(Expressed in thousand Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated)

Note 2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 61,951 122,029
Accounts receivable 4 523,855 691,063
Due from a related party 6 - 84
Prepayments and other receivables 5 110,777 162,571
Unbilled revenue 7 77,081 207,991
Inventories 8 418,878 520,470
Total current assets 1,192,542 1,704,208
Non-current assets
Investments 9 470,207 440,224
Non-current portion of retentions receivable 55,952 56,566
Property, plant and equipment 10 762,335 825,537
Investment properties 11 30,719 32,295
Deferred tax asset 22 5,524 957
Other intangible assets 12 64,297 78,657
Goodwill 13 74,216 86,558
Total non-current assets 1,463,250 1,520,794
TOTAL ASSETS 2,655,792 3,225,002
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Short term loans 14 843,216 1,085,008
Accounts payable and other liabilities 15 635,593 658,733
Current portion of long term loans 17 204,609 168,450
Current obligation under finance lease 16 9,919 9,573
Due to related parties 6 41,570 55,036
Billing in excess of contract revenue 7 45,984 12,951
Advances from customers 115,889 141,684
Zakat and income tax 22 64,740 50,276
Total current liabilities 1,961,520 2,181,711
Non-current liabilities
Obligation under finance lease 16 28,896 40,696
Long term loans 17 160,281 212,842
Other long term liabilities 18 - 52,945
End-of-service indemnities 19 67,937 58,658
Total non-current liabilities 257,114 365,141

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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part of the Group’s loans from three of its lenders to restructure part of approximately SR 1.2 billion of the total Group
indebtedness subject to the satisfactory conclusion of requirements by the lenders and the Company, the outcome of
which is still uncertain, the Company has also another overdue amount for which no agreement has yet been reached
with that lender to restructure that loan and nor has it been able to obtain a waiver from another lender for the breach
of loan covenant. Even though these factors indicate the existence of uncertainties which may cast doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, the consolidated financial statements which have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on successfully restructuring its financial and operational plans
do not include any adjustments that would result from a failure to:

« Finalise on the signed indicative terms to restructure its loans with three of its lenders;
« Agree on a satisfactory restructuring plan with another of its lenders on an overdue loan amount;
« Obtain a written waiver from one more of its lenders following a breach of covenant.

The consolidated financial statements and notes thereto do not disclose the details relating to these facts.

2) Additionally, we were unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence in relation to the recoverability of old unbilled
revenues of SR 50.4 million as disclosed in note 7 and the commercial and financial feasibility of development costs
of SR 52 million as disclosed in note 12. Any adjustment to these numbers would have a consequential impact on
the consolidated statements of operations, assets, liabilities and the equity. Further, we were unable to obtain
management representations relating to the above.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effect of the qualification paragraphs mentioned above, the consolidated financial
statements presently fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December
31, 2014, and the consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in conformity with accounting standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia appropriate to the
nature of the Group, and comply with the relevant provisions of the Regulations for Companies and the by-laws of
the Company as these relate to preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements.

Deloitte & Touche
Bakr Abulkhair & Co._

. o
Al-Mutahhar Y. Hamiduddin
License No. 296

4 Jumada’l, 1436
February 22,2015
(Except for note 35, as to which the date is 19 Jumada’ll, 1436/April 8, 2015)




Deloitte.

Bakr Atruikhar & Co

Pubdlic Accountants

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders
Saudi Cable Company
Jeddah, Saudi Arabia

Scope of Audit

We have audited the balance sheet of SAUDI CABLE COMPANY (a Saudi Joint Stock Company) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) as of December 31, 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes
in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 1 to 35 which form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements as prepared by the Company in accordance with Article 123 of the Regulations for Companies
and presented to us with all the necessary information and explanations. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Basis for qualifications

1) The Group incurred a net loss of SR 201.68 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 and, as of that date the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by SR 768.98 million and it has accumulated losses of SR 367.33
million which represent 48.3% of the share capital. The management has prepared forecasts that predict profitable
results for the 2015 financial year and which are dependent on successfully restructuring its loans and operations.
The restructuring of loans had not been finalized up to February 22, 2015 and on April 7, 2015 the Company signed
with three of its lenders indicative terms to restructure part of total indebtedness with these three lenders of
approximately SR 640 million plus accrued interest and which are still subject to review by the lenders’legal counsel
and the Company satisfactorily meeting certain new restructuring requirements.

The Group has also an overdue loan of approximately SR 93 million for which there is no agreement with that lender
to restructure that loan and it has also not complied with the covenants relating to loans of SR 126 million with
another lender, which give rise to defaults relating to certain of the Group’s borrowings; consequently the related
borrowings become repayable on demand which were not reflected in the presentation of these loans as current
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements concerning the possible outcome of meeting the new restructuring requirements and of finalizing the
restructuring of the Group’s loan obligations totalling approximately SR 1.2 billion as of December 31, 2014. As
indicated in the preceding paragraphs, whilst the Company has been able to secure indicative terms for restructuring
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Ended 31 December 2014

The Chairman and the Board of Directors duly expresses appreciation and gratitude to the Custodian of the two
Holy Mosques King Salman Bin Abdullaziz Al-Saud; HRH Crown Prince Mohammad bin Naif bin Abdullaziz Al-Saud,
Deputy Prime Minister, Minister of Interior; HRH Deputy Crown Prince Mohammad bin Salman Bin Abdullaziz Al-Saud,

Minister of Defence, for their continued cooperation and support.

They also express their condolences to the Custodian of the two Holy Mosques, Royal Family, and all citizens of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, with profound sorrow, on the passing away of our benevolent King Abdullah Bin Abdullaziz

Al-Saud. May Allah grant him mercy and forgiveness!

Thanks are extended to the Shareholders for their continued support and Executive Management and Company'’s

Staff for their great efforts which helped to achieve company’s goals in 2014.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

CHAIRMAN




18 - BOARD DECLARATIONS

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Proper books of account have been maintained.
The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented.
There are no significant doubts concerning the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s financial statements were prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally

accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and such accounting principles are applied on a consistent basis.

The Company has not issued any financial instruments such as stock options or stock rights that may be con-

verted into shares.

There were no major contracts awarded to any related parties, other than those disclosed in the afore-men-

tioned section of this report and also similarly disclosed in the financial statements.

There were no outstanding loans that neither were due from the directors during the year nor were any loan

repayments made.

There were no loans given to any of its members.

The Company has not made any transactions relating to its own stocks.

Bank loans and its movements are disclosed in this report, and in the financial statements.

There were no other share dealings entered by the Company with any of its directors or immediate members

of their families other than those disclosed above.
No waiver of rights has been received from any shareholder.

The external auditor has given a qualified opinion on the financial statements.

19 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE SHAREHOLDERS:

Approval of the Board of the Directors’ Report for 2014.

Approval of the 2014 year-end financial statements and external auditors’ report.
Absolving the Board of Directors of their responsibilities for the year 2014.
Approval of the appointment of external auditors for the year 2015.

Approval of the Business and Agreements made by and between the Company and related parties.




Ended 31 December 2014
Article 39 - Distribution of annual profits:

The annual profits arrived at after deducting all general expenditures and other charges, shall be distributed as fol-
lows:

39.1 A sum of 10 per cent of the net profits shall be set aside to form a Legal Reserve. The Ordinary General Assembly
may stop such setting aside when the said reserve equal fifty per cent of the Company’s paid-up capital.

39.2 Out of the remainder of the net profits a first dividend of not less than five per cent of the paid-up capital shall be
distributed among the shareholders.

39.3 Then an amount of not more than 10% (maximum of SR 200,000 per Director) of the remainder of the net profits,
shall be allocated and distributed to the members of the Board of Directors.

39.4 The remainder shall be distributed among the shareholders as an additional dividend, or be carried forward for
subsequent years in the manner recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the General Assembly.

Article 40 - Distribution of Dividends:

The dividends decided to be distributed among the shareholders shall be paid at the place and time fixed by the
Board of Directors within the guidelines or the relevant directives issued by the Ministry of Commerce.

Voting : The Company had included a resolution on approval of cumulative voting in the agenda of the Extraordinary Gen-
eral assembly No.39 on 3/8/1433H corresponding to 23/6/2012G; but there was no quorum and therefore the cumulative
voting method has not been incorporated in the Company’s Bylaws till date. Hence the Company has not implemented it.

Share Capital of the Company: The Company has a fully paid up capital of SR 760,000,000 divided into
76,000,000 equal shares of SR 10 each.

17 - IMPORTANT DATES FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND STAKEHOLDERS:

The BOD endeavors to meet four times each year. The dates of meetings are dependent on the maximum attendance
availability of its members. The following tentative dates have been initially fixed for important meetings to be

convened in 2015. The actual meeting dates may vary upon BOD Members’ availability.

Meeting Day and Date
1 | Ordinary General Assembly (OGA) Tuesday, 29-08-1436 H - 16-06-2015 G
2 | Board of Directors Meeting Monday, 01-07-1436 H — 20-04-2015 G
3 | Board of Directors Meeting Monday, 19-09-1436 H - 06-07-2015 G
4 | Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday, 08-01-1437 H-21-10-2015 G




Midal Cables W.L.L 2,687 20,175
Chem Global Limited 664 664
XECA International Information Technology 549 550
Hidada Limited 1,451 294

TOTAL 41,570 55,036

The above related party transactions along with an external auditor’s special report will be submitted at the next
Ordinary General Assembly (OGA).

15 - POTENTIAL RISKS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value and cash
flow interest rate risks), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The
Group has established controls on counter-party risks and uses derivative instruments to hedge its major risk expo-
sures. Property risks, Business Interruption, Public/Product Liability etc. are covered through appropriate insurance
policies.

Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The most
important types of risks are credit risks, currency risk and fair value and cash flow interest rate risks.

16 - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company endeavors to lay down the basis, the policies and procedures that match the Corporate Governance Regu-
lations issued by the Capital Market Authority as per Resolution No. 1-212-2006 dated 21/10/1427 H corresponding to
12/11/2006G.

Taking guidance from the Corporate Governance Regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company’s Corporate
Governance Regulations have been approved vide Resolution No. 10 issued by the General Assembly of the Shareholders
at its meeting No. 36 held on 5-7-1432 H/ 7-6-2011G.

Operationally, the Company has applied what has been laid down in the Regulations, either fully or partly, through the
Bylaws and the Internal Regulations and Procedures and the related mechanisms, beside its adherence to the Accounting
Standards recognized in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The Company is continuously working on updating the policies and procedures governing the application of these regula-
tions.

Shareholders’ Rights and communications with them: All shareholders are entitled to all rights attached to the
share and as described in the Company’s Bylaws and as laid down in the governance regulations, in particular the
right to participate in governance and profits of the Company. These documents cover the rights of the shareholders
and they may acquaint themselves of these by visiting the Company’s website (www.saudicable.com); this is in ad-

dition to what is published periodically on ‘Tadawul’ and that published from time to time in the local newspapers.

Dividend Policy: Articles 39 and 40 of the Company’s Bylaws cover the policy on distribution of annual profits as
follows:




The Group had the following related party transactions during the years ended 31 December:

Board of Directors' Report For The Year
Ended 31 December 2014

(SR’000)

Related party Nature of transaction 2014 2013
Management Remunerations 72 640

Purchases of Aluminum Rod 6,865 61,755
Midal Cables W.L.L. -
50% Owned by SCC: In total the BOD has 6
members, of which 3 are nominated from Dividends income 87,167 11,195
SCC's management.
Xenel Industries Limited

] . Expenses of Travel, Consultancy,

Private company. The BOD of which o

Training, Legal etc. charged to the 2,866 8,003
includes 2 members from SCC BOD: Khalid A.

.Group, advances and Loans
Alireza & Yousuf A. Alireza
XECA International Information
Technology IT Outsourcing services paid/

6,742 7,501
25% owned by SCC and 25% owned by Advances
Xenel Industries
Hidada Limited Consultancy Expenses charged by
Subsidiary of Xenel Industries the Group
Alujain Corporation
2 common directors:
) ) . Consultancy Expenses charged by
Chairman: Khalid A. Alireza - 16
. the Group
Director: Eng'r. Abdullah Mohammed Noor
Rehaimi
Related party balances comprised of the following as at 31 December: 2014 2013
Due from related parties
Hidada Limited : :
Alujain Corporation - 84
XECA International Information Technology - -
- 84

Due to related parties
Xenel Industries Limited 36,219 33,353




5 7- Dividends Rights of Shareholders 2 2

8- Policies and Procedure related to
Disclosure

9- Disclosure in the Board of
Directors’ Report

10- Main Functions of the Board of

8 Directors 7 7
9 11- Responsibilities of the Board 8 8
10 | 12- Formation of the Board 9 9
11 13- Committees of the Board 3 3
12 14- Audit Committee 11 11
13 2:5- Nomlnatlon and Remuneration 8 8
ommittee
14 | 16- Meetings of the Board 4 4

17- Remuneration and

1 Indemnification of Board Members ! !

16 |132(3)—arc(§)nﬂict of Interest within the 3 3

17 | Total Clauses 91 89 2
18 | Percentage of Implementation 100% 97.8% 2.2%

13 - PENALTIES IMPOSED BY CAPITAL MARKET AUTHORITY

There are no penalties imposed by Capital Market Authority during 2014.

14 - TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company, in the normal course of business, has the following major dealings with related parties:

1. The Group engages in regular trade transactions with Midal Cables and Hidada Limited, which are disclosed in the

annual financial statements. All transactions are enacted on prevailing commercial terms.
2. An affiliate of the Company, XECA, is engaged in providing Information Technology Services at commercial prices.

3. XenelIndustries Limited, under an on-going agreement with the Company, is reimbursed with actual costs incurred
on its behalf for services rendered. Additionally, to support the company’s urgent working capital requirements an
incremental amount of SR 5 million (interest free) was advanced to SCC during the year 2013, in addition to the SR

25 million (interest free) loan provided during 2012, which is still unpaid and continues to be interest free.




Ended 31 December 2014

Members Position
Dr. Abdullah H. Masri. Chairman of the Committee
Yousuf A. Alireza. Member
Dr. Ahmed Saad Gabbani. Expert Member

The newly elected Board, which commenced on 31 September 2014, has confirmed the continuity of existing
Members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee in their current positions, until further notice.

Meetings:

The initial Committee had two meetings during the year 2014 as per the following attendance:

No | Meeting Date Meeting No Attended By

1- Dr. Abdullah H. Masri.
1 | 11 May 2014 (4) 2-Yousuf A. Alireza.
3- Dr. Ahmed Saad Gabbani.

1- Dr. Abdullah H. Masri.
2 | 30 September 2014 (5) 2-Yousuf A. Alireza.
3- Dr. Ahmed Saad Gabbani.

12 - IMPLEMENTATION STATUS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CMA) REGULATIONS

(As of 31 December 2014)

. e No. of Partial In Process Not
No CMA Article No. /Description Implemented of REMARKS
clauses Implem Appl.
Impimnt.
1 3- General Rights of Shareholders 1 1
2 4- Shareholders Exercise of Rights 5 3
and Access to Information
5- Shareholders Rights related to the
3 10 10
General Assembly
Articles6 b &d -
4 | 6-Voting Rights 4 2 2 are not applicable
to the company




SCC - Audit & Risk Committee Meetings and Result

The committee held 7 meetings in 2014.

No | Meeting Date Meeting No Attended By
e Omar Khalifati
1 12/01/2014 (104) One hundred four e Adnan A Maimani

¢ Mohammad Uzair Afzal

e Omar Khalifati

2 17/02/2014 (105) One hundred five ¢ Adnan A Maimani

¢ Mohammad Uzair Afzal
e Omar Khalifati

3 | 23/04/2014 (106) One hundred six e Adnan A Maimani

¢ Mohammad Uzair Afzal
e Omar Khalifati

4 | 26/06/2014 (107) One hundred seven e Adnan A Maimani

¢ Mohammad Uzair Afzal
e Omar Khalifati

5 |17/07/2014 (108) One hundred eight * Adnan A Maimani

¢ Mohammad Uzair Afzal
e Omar Khalifati

6 |26/10/2014 (109) One hundred nine e Adnan A Maimani

¢ Mohammad Uzair Afzal

e Omar Khalifati
e Adnan A Maimani

7 10/12/2014 (110) One hundred ten

Meeting Fees paid @ SR 3,000 per meeting per member

RESULT AND FINDINGS

1. The Scope and Audit Plan, Procedures and function of the Internal Audit Department were reviewed and found
adequate.

2. A study of the Company’s financial and operational policies/procedures and internal control system shows that
the policies/procedures are adequate and well placed.

3. The result of Internal Audit showed that internal control procedures were effective throughout the Group. Ex-
amination and review of books of account, financial transactions, reports, data and operational activities and
physical verification of company’s assets and properties showed no significant procedural violations.

4, In view of recent basic changes in the organizational structure of the Company, it was felt necessary to update
the existing Limits of Authority, a vital operational tool of the company. The updating exercise is in progress
and a revised document will be implemented in 2015.

2. Nominations & Remunerations Committee:

The functions of the Nominations & Remunerations Committee may be summarized as determining the policies
and standards for nominations to the membership of the Board of Directors with periodical review of the require-
ments of capabilities and skills for the Board; study of the Board’s strengths and weaknesses and suggesting ways
of addressing it; ensuring the independence of the independent Directors, study of conflict of interest with their
membership of the Boards of other companies; beside studying or suggesting policies for compensation and
bonus to the Board of Directors and Senior Executives. The Committee has been reconstituted vide BOD Resolu-
tion No. BOD 142/2 dated 4 Muharram 1434 H corresponding to 18 November 2012 G and BOD Resolution 144/3

dated 25/02/2013 as follows:




Ended 31 December 2014

Approval for the write-off of the value of the expired raw materials (Nylon Polyamide Compound) amounting to SR

2.195 million from the Company’s books.

(BOD Res No. BOD-150/3 of 27-04-2014)

Recommendation to shareholders to appoint M/s Deloitte & Touche Bakr Abu Alkhair to Audit the financials of SCC
for the year 2014.

(BOD Res. No. BOD-150/4 of 27-4-2014)

Approval of SR 5.7 million for constructing a building for reels maintenance in Jeddah Industrial City 2"d Phase.

(BOD Res No. BOD-152/3 of 10-07-2014)

11E - DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO EXECUTIVE & NON-EXECUTIVE BOD MEMBERS &

SENIOR EXECUTIVES
In SR’000
2014 2013 Total Five Highe.st paic! senior executives
including CFO
Non-Executive (7 Persons) 2014 2013
Salaries and Allowances - 88 6,159 3,774
Fees 72 72 - -
Bonus - - 1,195 -
Total 72 160 7,354 3,774

11F - BOARD COMMITTEES
1. SCC-Audit & Risk Committee

Mandate

The main objective of the Committee includes ensuring adequacy and soundness of internal control structure and
pertinent policies, financial accounting and reporting policies/procedures and its implementation, effectiveness
of the internal and external audit functions; and specially to examine risks and exposures facing the Company and
its management.

The Audit Committee in the Company was formed under the Resolution No. 903 dated 12/08/1414H issued by
the Ministry of Commerce. The formation of the Committee was approved by the Ordinary General Assembly of
the shareholders on 30/12/1414H. The Charter of the Audit Committee was approved by the Board of Directors on
8/6/1994 (Resolution No. BM 65 - 4).

Membership

The following are the current members of the Audit & Risk Committee (As of 31.12.2014):

Members Member of the BOD Non-Executive Shareholder Position
Omar H. Khalifati V V Chairman
Adnan A. Maimani v v v Member
Mohammad Uzair Afzal \V V Member

All the Audit & Risk Committee Members are not Employees of SCC Group.




11C - DIRECTORS’ OWNERSHIP OF SCC SHARES

The details of the Directors’and their Families’ ownership of shares in the Company is as follows:

shares or any of its subsidiaries

A description of any interest of returning to the board members and their spouses and their minor children in the

Net change Ownership of first
No. of shares
No. of shares at the in the No. of Percent degree
Name of the Member at the end of
beginning of 2014 o shares during Change | relatives & changes
the year therein
Khalid A. Alireza 450,524 450,524 - Included
Shaukat Aziz 1,000 1,000 - None
Saleh Eid Al-Hussaini 1,000 1,000 - None
Dr. Abdullah H. Masri 2,559 2,559 - None
Adnan A. Maimani 1,000 1,000 - None
Yousuf A. Alireza 1,000 1,000 - None
Eng'r. Abdullah M. Rehaimi 5,000 5,000 - None

Neither the Senior Executives nor their Families acquired any shares during the year 2014.

owned by any of them at the end of 2014.

11D - BOD MEETINGS & IMPORTANT RESOLUTIONS

There were no shares

2014 Meeting Dates
Attended by
13 Jan 27 Apr 22 Jun 10 Jul 26 Oct
Khalid A. Alireza Vv vV Vv v Vv
Shaukat Aziz vV V By Proxy v vV
Saleh E. Al-Husseini By Proxy By Proxy V V V
Dr. Abdullah H. Masri N N By Proxy By Proxy N
Adnan A. Maimani Vv Vv Vv v v
Yousuf A. Alireza V V By Proxy V V
Eng'r. Abdullah M. Rehaimi V v vV vV vV

The following important resolutions were passed in the year 2014:

Brief

(BOD Circular Res No. BOD-C-2014 of 10-01-2014)

Approval to accept facilities offered by Bank Muscat for an amount of SR 177.3 million.

business needs.

(BOD Res No. BOD-149/2 of 13-01-2014)

Approval of sale of certain assets of the company to benefit from their potential value and meet the Company’s




11B - BRIEF CREDENTIALS

Board of Directors' Report For The Year
Ended 31 December 2014

The Board of Directors comprises of 7 members elected for a three-year term commencing 3' September 2014.

Name of the
Member

Member
Classification

Academic
Qualifications

Membership of other
Public Joint Stock
Companies

Khalid A. Alireza

Non-Executive

- Bachelor's degree in
Engineering from University of
California, Berkley.

1. Chairman of Alujain
Corporation for the
petrochemical industry.

Chicago.

- Doctorate in Humanities from
University of Chicago,

- Dipin Business Administration
from Harvard University.

Chairman - Master’s degree in Engineering 2. Chairman of the National
from University of California, Company for the
Berkley. petrochemical industry.
. - Master’s degree in Business
Shaukat Aziz Independent o ; -
Administration
1. Saudi Basic Industries
Corporation (SABIC).
Saleh E. Al Hussaini Independent - Master’s degree in Economics. | 2. Saudi Airlines Cargo
Limited Company.
3. Trade Union Insurance.
- Bachelor's degree in
Humanities from University of
California.
_ mjrsr;[:;?ticles%’:ii:rbniversit of Coca-Cola Bottling Company
Dr. Abdullah H. Masri Independent y of Saudi

Arabia (CCBCSA) for soft drink.

Adnan A. Maimani

Non-Executive

- Master’s degree in Law from
McGill University, Canada

Saudi Industrial Services Co.
(SISCO)

Yousuf A. Alireza

Non-Executive

- Bachelor’s degree in Applied
Sciences in Business Sector
from University of San Fran-
cisco

- Master’s degree in Business
Administration

Eng'r. Abdullah M.
Rehaimi

Independent

- B.Sc. Mechanical Engineering -
King Fahd University of Petroleum
and Minerals in Saudi Arabia.

1. Savola Group

a representative of the Public
Investment Fund - Ministry of
Finance.

2. Alujain Corporation.




Midal Cables W.L.L.

The Company owns 50% of Midal Cables W.L.L. - Bahrain which is engaged in the manufacture and supply of Alumi-
num alloy rods, wires and conductors and related products. The facilities are located adjacent to the Alba Smelter in
Bahrain. The capacity for Aluminum rod production at the year-end 2014 was 250,000 MT.

Midal Cables W.L.L. owns 100% shareholding in Aluwheel - Bahrain which manufactures specialty wire under “Midal”
brand name and its current capacity is 3,000 MT.

Midal Cables W.L.L. owns 70% shareholding in Bahrain Welding Wire Products W.L.L. - Bahrain which manufactures
Aluminium rod with production capacity of 32,000 MT.

Midal Cables W.L.L - fully owned subsidiary in Turkey - Midal Kablo San. ve Tic. A.S. is engaged in rod manufacturing
capacity of 30,000 MT since 2" Half of 2014 and has existing conductor manufacturing capacity of over 20,000 MT.

During 2014 the following subsidiaries of Midal Cables W.L.L. commenced production:
1. Midal Cables Saudi Arabia L.L.C (100% subsidiary) - Conductor production capacity of over 20,000 MT.

2. Midal Cables International Pty Ltd. - Australia (88% subsidiary) — Rod production capacity of 50,000 MT and
12,000 MT conductor production capacity.

During 2015 Midal Cables International Limitada - Mozambique (100% subsidiary) - Rod production capacity of
50,000 MT is expected to commence production in 1st quarter of 2015.

XECA International Information Technology

The Company currently owns 25% of XECA. XECA is engaged in the supporting of Information Systems and Network
Services. It is providing this service to many companies, including SCC.

11 - TRANSPARENCY AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

11A - THE SCC BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major functions and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are:

a) Approving the strategic plans and main objectives of the Company and supervising their implementation;
b) Laying down rules for internal control systems and supervising them;

Q) Drafting a corporate governance code for the company which does not contradict the provisions of the CMA
regulations, supervising and monitoring in general the effectiveness of the code and amending it whenever
necessary.

d) Laying down specific and explicit policies, standards and procedures, for the membership of the Board of Direc-
tors and implementing them after approval of these by the General Assembly.

e) Without prejudice to the competencies of the General Assembly, the Board shall assume all the necessary pow-
ers for the Company’s management the ultimate responsibility for the company rests with the Board even if it
sets up committees or delegates some of its powers to a third party.




10 - SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Board of Directors' Report For The Year
Ended 31 December 2014

% of Capital

Capital as

Principal Field of Country of er Nominal
Subsidiaries : 'p. . ' Hntry . held Directly or P : .
Activities Incorporation indirect! Share Value in
v SR Million
Domestic
. Purchase and sale of
saudi C'able.Co.mpany for electrical cables and Saudi Arabia 100% 10.0
Marketing Limited
related products
. Turnkey power and
Mass P ts for P d
ass Frojec S or. owe‘r a.n telecommunication Saudi Arabia 100% 10.0
Telecommunications Limited )
projects
Electrical &
M Centers for Distributi
ass e.n erstor Lis r|. u. on telecommunication Saudi Arabia 100% 445
of Electrical Products Limited . .
distribution services
International
Mass Kablo Yatirim Ve Ticaret
Anonim Sirketi (Previously Mass | Holding Company Turkey 100%
Holding Anonim Sirketi)
350.3
Manufacture, supply
Demirer Kablo Tesisleri Sanayi | and trading of electrical
Turk 1009
Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi cables urkey 00%
Mass Int tional Tradi
assin ern.a |.ona rading International trade Ireland 100% 0.6
Company Limited (dormant)
Saudi Cable Company (U.A.E) Sale of cables and United Arab 100% 10
0 .
L.L.C. related products Emirates
Manufacturer of Switch
Elimsan Group of Companies Gears, Transformers and | Turkey 94.4% 216.9
related accessories
Associate Companies
Capital as per
Name of Entit Principal Field of Country of % of Nominal Share
y Activities Incorporation Ownership Value in SR
Million
Conductors, Rods &
Midal Cables W.L.L. ! Bahrain 50% 124.3
related products
Implementation of
XECA International Information P . I . .
Information Systems Saudi Arabia 25% 13.2

Technology

and Network Services




2013 2 Years 26,719 15,938 15,469 3,281
2014 1 Year 2,813 - - 2,813

Odeabank
2014 6 Months 15,469 - 6,551 8,918
2014 3 Months 13,594 - 11,250 2,344
2013 10 Months 8,801 8,801 8,801 -
Sekerbank 2014 1 Year 20,738 - 6,240 14,498
Mass Kablo 2014 6 Months 7,219 - 7,219 -
2012 2 Years 18,750 18,750 18,750 -
TVakiflar 2013 3 Years 9,375 9,375 - 9,375
Bankasi 2013 1Year 3,750 3,750 3,750 -
2014 3 Months 4,688 - 4,688 -
2012 18 Months 64,500 64,500 64,500 -

Ziraatbank
2014 43,125 - - 43,125
TOTAL MASS KABLO 470,790 188,918 277,770 141,728
2013 11 Months 9,345 9,345 9,345 -

Yapi Kredi
2014 11 Months 8,606 - - 8,606
Isbankasi 2013 13,751 13,751 2,246 11,505
2013 5,539 5,539 5,539 -
Kuveyt Turk 2014 8 Months 3,341 - - 3,341
2014 6 Months 4,028 - - 4,028

Elimsan

T-Bank 2013 9 Months 3,548 3,548 1,061 2,486
2013 10,325 10,325 10,325 -
Bank Asya 2014 6 Months 5,277 - - 5,277
2014 9 Months 2,678 - - 2,678
Denizbank 2013 5 Months 10,061 10,061 - 10,061
Vakifbank 2013 7 Months 7,500 7,500 - 7,500
TOTAL ELIMSAN 84,000 60,069 28,517 55,482
TOTAL SHORT TERM LOANS AS OF 31-DEC-2014 1,723,166 | 1,085,009 539,063 | 843,216




Board of Directors' Report For The Year
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Short-Term Loans of the Company at 31 December 2014 were:

Compan Bank Loan Date Financing o[?;:al Balance Paid in Balance
pany Name Period YTD 2013 2014 | YTD 2014
Amount
(SR'000)
SHORT TERM LOANS
ARRajhi | e 12 1Year 149,894 126,407 34,265 92,142
Musharaka
15-Apr-13 1Year 13,542 13,542 13,542 _
Bank AL | 01-Aug-13 | 1 Year 114,644 114,644 67,963 46,681
Bilad 02-Oct-13 | 1 Year 33,405 33,405 1,491 31,914
12-Sep-13 1Year 25,094 19,103 . 19,103
186,685 | 180,694 82,996 97,698
Saudi Cable Bank
Company 15-Jul-13 1 Year 199,560 71,408 71,408 -
Muscat
Bank Al | 31 Dec-13 | 1 Year 90,344 90,344 12,480 77,864
Jazira
SAMBA - 1Year 17,425 17,425 17,425 -
BNP 15-Aug-12 | 9 Months 69,603 69,603 . 69,880
NCB 02-Mar-13 | 2 Months 234644 | 234,644 14,202 220,442
Saudi
British Bank 27-Nov-14 | 2 Months 15,233 - - 15,233
TOTAL SAUDI CABLE COMPANY 963,388 | 790,525| 232,776| 573,259
26-Sep-12 | 2 Years 159,988 45,497 . 45,497
Mass Projects Al-Rajhi
2014 1Year 45,000 - - 27,250
TOTAL MASS PROJECTS 204,988 45,497 - 72,747
Akbank 2014 1Year 75,731 11,250 18,750 11,981
Albaraka 2014 6 Months 27,953 2,250 19,121 8,831
Turk
Anadolu 2013 1Year 14,438 8,250 14,438 _
Bank
Asya 2013 1 Year 22,643 6,086 12,731 -
Mass Kablo E‘g:rzzzk/ 2013 2 Years 10,500 5,625 4,125 12,938
Eximbank 2014 4 Months 9,375 - 9,375 -
Fibabank 2013 6 Months 48,675 17,813 33,863 14,813
2013 1Year 9,375 16,530 14,400 -
Garanti 2014 1Year 5,063 . . 5,063
Bankasi
2014 6 Months 7,500 - 3,750 3,750




Mass Projects Al-Rajhi 26-Sep-12 2 Years 159,988 95,464 - 95,464
E“Brl?rz Z’;k/ 24-Dec-12 | 2 Years 5,625 11,438 11,438 -
Akbank 27-Dec-12 5 Years 56,250 39,375 - 39,375
Odeabank | 25-Apr-13 2 Years 3,750 2,813 2,813 -
Sekerbank | 25-Oct-13 | 16 Months 3,938 3,938 3,938 -
Mass Kablo Ziraatbank | 24-Oct-14 | 16 Months 5,625 - - 5,625
Té\;?]'ﬂggr 03-Dec-14 | 1Year 9,375 - - 9,375
Ziraatbank | 12-Nov-14 | 16 Months 7,500 - - 7,500
TTGV 6,281 1,976 1,730 246
98,344 59,540 19,919 62,121
TOTAL COMMERCIAL (B) 374,478 237,885 21,055 239,330
TOTAL LONG TERM LOANS (A+B) 565,938 381,293 38,903 364,890
SIDF (17,848) - (27,400)
LESS: Current Position Commercial Banks (150,603) - (177,209)
Total Current Portion (168,451) ) (204,609)
Term Loan
TOTAL LONG TERM LOANS AS OF 31-DEC-2014 212,842 - 160,281




Board of Directors' Report For The Year
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8 - ZAKAT & INCOME TAX

Zakat and income taxes applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries are calculated separately in accordance with
the respective countries’ applicable laws. Provision is made for Zakat and income tax payable annually. Adjustments
arising from final zakat and income tax assessments, if any, are reported as part of the results of the year in which such
assessments are made.

Accordingly, a net of provision of SR 15 million was made for zakat in the year 2014. The zakat provision available at
31 December 2014 amounted to SR 64.7 million, which includes prior years’ provisions.

The Company is still contesting some of the prior years’ assessments with the appellate authorities and also awaiting

the Board of Grievances ruling on an appeal filed with them.

9 - BANKLOANS

Term Loans of the Company at 31 December 2014 were:

Compan Bank Loan Date Financing o['ga':al Balance Paid in Balance
pany Name Period YTD 2013 2014 YTD 2014
Amount
(SR’000)
TERM LOANS
saudi Cable SIDF 8-Mar-12 | 6 Years 191,460 143,408 17,848 125,560
Company
TOTAL TERM LOANS (A) 191,460 143,408 17,848 125,560
COMMERCIAL BANK
19-Oct-09 6 Years 31,578 27,884 1,136 26,748
. Al-Rajhi 03-Nov-09 6 Years 36,375 31,596 - 31,596
Saudi Cable
Company 21-Dec-09 6 Years 18,193 15,791 - 15,791
BNP
. 24-Sep-12 4 Years 30,000 7,610 - 7,610
Paribas
116,146 82,881 1,136 81,745




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

THE SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(IN SR’000)
As at 31 December Net
DESCRIPTION
2014 2013 Change

Capital Stock 760,000 760,000 -
Statutory Reserves 63,432 63,432 -
Accumulated (Loss)/Profit (367,332) (165,653) (201,679)
Proposed dividends - -

Cumulative changes in fair values (20,123) 23,087 (43,210)
Foreign currency translation reserve (6,234) (7,185) 951
Total Shareholders' Equity 429,743 673,681 (243,938)
Minority Interest 7,415 4,469 2,946
Total Equity 437,158 678,150 (240,992)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
ZAKAT AND OTHER AMOUNTS PAID TO GOVERNMENT

(IN SR>000)
As at 31 December
DESCRIPTION Net Change
2014 2013
Zakat 407 6,821 (6,414)
The Public Authority for Social Insurance 8,190 6,534 1,656
Registration, Visa and Other Expenses 2,490 3,262 (772)
Total amounts paid to the Government 11,086 16,616 (5,530)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Profit and Loss Summary (2 Years)
(In SR’000)
2014 2013 Increase /
DESCRIPTION (Decrease)
Amount % Amount % Amount
Gross Sales 1,563,179 91.1 2,073,846 83.7 (510,667)
Contract revenue 153,142 8.9 404,598 16.3 (251,456)
Total Sales 1,716,321 100.0 2,478,444 100.0 (762,123)
Cost of Sales (1,549,947) (90.3) (1,987,647) (80.2) (437,700)
Contracts Cost (141,863) (8.3) (389,833) (15.7) (247,970)
éelllng & Distribution (101,906) (5.9) (97,633) (3.9) 4,273
Xpenses
General & Administrative (103,635) 6.0) (114,438) 4.6) (10,803)
Expenses
Amortization of Deferred (16,485) (1.0) (13.781) (0.6) 2704
Cost
Financial Charges (112,039) (6.5) (153,225) (6.2) (41,186)
Provision for Doubtful (3.970) 0.2) (71.439) (2.9) (67,469)
Debts
Total Expenses (2,029,845) (118.3) (2,827,996) (114.1) (798,151)
Other Income / (Loss) 9,783 0.6 (738) - 10,521
Foreign Currency re-mea-
(473) - (6,243) (0.3) 5,770
surement (Loss)/Profit
Equity share of Profit from
114,540 6.7 131,858 53 (17,318)
Associates
Impairment of Goodwill (12,342) (0.7) - - (12,342)
Derivative Financial Instru-
11,715 0.7 15,660 0.6 (3,945)
ments
Total Other Income &
Share of Profit From 123,223 7.2 140,537 5.7 (17,314)
Associates
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE
ZAKAT & INCOME TAX (190,301) (11.1) (209,015) (8.4) 18,714
Zakat and Income Tax (13,535) (0.8) (29,339) (1.2) (15,804)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
MINORITY INTEREST (203,836) (11.9) (238,354) (9.6) 34,518
Minority Interest 2,157 0.1 9,237 0.4 (7,080)
NET PROFIT / (LOSS) (201,679) (11.8) (229,117) (9.2) 27,438
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Total Shareholders' Equity & Total Liabilities
(SR'000)
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2012

B Total Liabilities

2013

2014

Profit & Loss Summary (5 years)

(SR’000)
Year ended 31 December
DESCRIPTION
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Revenue 1,857,106 3,199,565 2,687,850 2,478,444 1,716,321
Costs and Expenses (2,050,715) (3,291,096) (2,944,554) (2,810,080) (2,018,308)
Net Profit/(Loss) (193,609) (91,531) (256,704) (331,636) | (301,987)
Equity Share of Profit from Associates 116,308 96,272 104,610 131,858 114,540
Net Profit/(Loss) before Zakat (77,301) 4,741 (152,094) (199,778) (187,447)
Zakat & Income Tax (10,515) 362 (4,311) (29,339) (14,232)
Net Profit/(Loss) (87,816) 5,103 (156,405) (229,117) (201,679)




7 - GROUP FINANCIALS

Summary of Financial Position (5 years)

As at 31 December
DESCRIPTION (SR'000)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

ASSETS:
Current Assets 2,366,331 2,786,207 2,369,208 1,704,208 1,192,542
Non - Current Assets 1,276,214 | 1,320,855 1,404,885 1,520,794 1,463,250
Total Assets 3,642,545 | 4,107,062 3,774,093 3,225,002 | 2,655,792
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Current liabilities 1,978,521 2,619,001 2,256,645 2,181,711 1,961,520
Non - Current liabilities 464,398 466,660 589,081 365,141 257,114
Total Liabilities 2,442,919 | 3,085,661 2,845,726 2,546,852 2,218,634
Shareholders’ Equity 1,183,625 1,009,093 915,084 673,681 429,743
Minority Interest 16,001 12,308 13,283 4,469 7,415
;m' Liabilities and Share- 3,642,545 | 4,107,062 3,774,093 | 3,225,002 2,655,792

olders’ Equity

Total Assets
(SR'000)

e

4,500,000
4,000,000 -
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ELIMSAN (SWITCHGEAR)
During the year, the Company continued to meet the demand for domestic electric infrastructure in spite of this seg-

ment providing lower margins.

The impetus focus on developing export markets continued to draw the focus of the management, where new mar-
kets were tapped. As a result, the Company is well poised to get substantial confirmed orders from GCC countries. The
qualifications process is at its final stages of completion in GCC and, in particular, KSA where the market is promising
with higher margins.

In addition, a further portfolio of new products was successfully developed, which will allow the company to explore
additional export markets. This development has also expanded the production capacity which will eventually in-
crease order intake in 2015 and beyond. The company has a strong backlog of confirmed orders to be delivered in
2015. Restructuring of bank loans is successfully being concluded which will help ease the financial situation.

L
- s e 8




5 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Business Intelligence & Dashboard being the next logical step for benefiting from our stable SAP system that has been
operational throughout SCC and Mass Project, an Intranet Portal under SharePoint platform has been developed,
which will form the base for providing Management Information System.

This portal, currently has facility to manage documents in a more controlled and secured manner, is expected to
Go-live in 2nd Quarter 2015 with a plan of having Dashboard by end of 2015.
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6 - TURKISH OPERATIONS

MASS CABLES

Implementation of cost reduction programme was successful; the Company continued to maintain its steady perfor-
mance in its core markets. Like other Group Companies, its internal operations were adversely influenced by the lack
of inadequate liquidity. The company secured good orders from the Iragi market which were mostly delivered during
the year and the balance will be delivered in 2015.

On resolving the liquidity issues, the company can turnaround to a satisfactory performance level in a short span of
time to reap the benefits from its long term investments, coupled with a good backlog of orders, and with the com-
mercial production of its own accessories brand, expected to startin 2015, should further translate this into imminent
margin improvement in 2016 and beyond.




3 - REVENUES

Board of Directors' Report For The Year
Ended 31 December 2014

The Group’s revenues in 2014 were SR 1,716 million as compared to SR 2,478 million in 2013.

The Group’s consolidated revenues include sales from its Turkish and UAE subsidiaries, but do not include the rev-
enues of Midal Cables, which is 50% owned by SCC. Midal Cables recorded revenue of SR 3,005 million in 2014.

The Geographical distribution of the revenues was:

SR Million
Region
2014 2013
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) & GCC 1,175 1,900
Rest of the World 541 578
TOTAL SALES 1,716 2,478
The Geographical distribution of the net Income/(Loss) was:
SR Million
Region
2014 2013
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) & GCC (124) (175)
Rest of the World (77) (54)
TOTAL NETINCOME/(LOSS) (201) (229)
Revenue was generated from the following segments:
SR Million
Revenue From As at 31 December
2014 2013 Net Change

Product Sales 1,563 2,074 (511)
Projects & Contracting 153 405 (251)
TOTAL REVENUE 1,716 2,478 (762)

4 - ORGANIZATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group continued maintaining its Saudiazation policy and also in its commitment of encouraging local employ-
ment. Atthe end of the year 2014, the locals Saudi and Turkish, constituted 57% of the total Group workforce of 1,759

employees, as compared to 53% of 1,901 employees at the end of 2013.
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1 - INTRODUCTION

Saudi Cable Company (SCC) is a joint stock Company with ownership in several manufacturing facilities in the King-
dom of Saudi Arabia (KSA), Kingdom of Bahrain and Turkey. These companies are engaged in the Manufacture, Sup-
ply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning and Maintenance of Power Cable, ranging from Extra High Voltage, Medium
Voltage, Low Voltage, Building Wires, Telecommunication Cables, Instrumentation, Specialty Control Cables, Electrical
Sub-Stations, Switch Gears, Electrical Cables Accessories and Transformers.

Additionally, SCC Group has a network of distribution for the supply of all types of cables and associated electrical
products from several of its Warehouses. It also supports its customers through a total solution for the Supply, Instal-
lation, Testing & Commissioning and Maintenance of Electrical Systems with the state-of-the-art Digital and Informa-
tion Technology System.

2 - SALIENT ACTIVITIES

Profit & Loss And Financial Restructuring

The Group net loss of SR 201.7 million was largely due to inadequate funding facilities available to the Group during

the year as a result of main operations performing well below their normal functional capabilities.

Financial Restructuring

The Group has engaged internationally renowned institutions of financial advisors, to restructure the financial re-
quirements for the Group. A comprehensive plan which proposes a long term feasible financial structure for the
Group with additional working capital financing, including a capital increase, which will help stabilize, and strengthen
the on-going operations, has been presented to its lenders. The Group has worked extensively with its lenders and

advisors, and soon expects to finalize the restructuring plan.

The market trend of improving margins gives the Group a substantial encouragement to streamline its resources for
the long term.The Group has also undertaken key management changes, and appointed a new President/CEO, CFO &

a new Head of Commercial Affairs, and expects to benefit from these changes over the coming periods.

With the realignment of the financial and management resources, along with the new machinery and the upgraded
systems, the Group will be well poised to capitalize on the better prevailing market conditions, in escalating demand
and margin from the moving forward outlook coupled with the growth in infrastructural investments within the re-

gional economies.

Profit Distribution & Dividend

During 2014, the company did not disburse any dividends, similar to 2013.
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